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Vision

FA=

To drive for unity and excellence of the construction industry of

Hong Kong.

BEEERER BEFB

Mission

£

To strengthen the sustainability of the construction industry in
Hong Kong by providing a communications platform, striving for
continuous improvement, increasing awareness of health and
safety, as well as improving skills development.
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Mr. LEE Shing-see, GBS, OBE, JP
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It is my pleasure to prepare this message along with our Annual
Report. The Construction Industry Council (CIC) is now in its fifth
year of service and | am proud to see the organisation making such
wonderful progress over the years. This Annual Report will help
you understand more about our evolution, and some of the works
undertaken by the CIC in 2011.

| would like to begin with an overview of the construction industry
in Hong Kong, which we are committed to serving. Our mission is
to strive for improvements and excellence to ensure the continuous
growth and prosperity of our industry.

Today, the construction sector is booming with optimism that the
upward trend will continue in the years to come. With various
mega infrastructural developments in full swing, the demand for
construction workers and construction-related professionals are
expected to soar across the board. ltis therefore crucial for the CIC,
the government, and the construction industry to recognise and tap
into these unprecedented opportunities to boost the development of
the industry and the Hong Kong community at large.
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Overview
The CIC was founded in 2007. Throughout the past years, the

CIC has become well-recognised by the construction industry
as a deliberation platform among industry practitioners. We also
serve as an effective communication channel with the Government,

thanks to the efforts of our past and present Members.

Continuous Improvement

The CIC is committed to supporting the sustainable development of
the construction industry to meet future demands. To accomplish
our mission of promoting only the “best practice” within our industry,
the CIC published guidelines and safety alerts, and conducted
research studies. To gauge the performance of the construction
industry as a whole, we devised a set of key performance indicators
to measure and benchmark their performance through different
perspectives.

The CIC takes pride in striving for a better living environment.
Our zero carbon building, which is currently under construction,
is bound to raise the profile of Hong Kong’s environmental efforts
while educating the public on eco-building designs and technology.
We look forward to the opening of our signature project.

Communication Platform

The CIC has established a number of standing committees
dedicated to addressing specific issues and concerns associated
with the industry. The committees comprise of members from
different sectors in the industry. We believe itis important to develop
and maintain strong connections with key stakeholders at all levels.
By speaking out, listening to, and understanding one another, we
are able to respond to their concerns in the most efficient manner.

We entered a new era in 2011 when we moved into our new
headquarters in Wanchai. The new office offers more space to
accommodate our current programmes and paves way. for more

collaborative activities with stakeholders.
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Improving Industry’s Image

One of the key priorities of the CIC is the enhancement of the
construction industry’simage. Itis acommon perception among the
majority of Hong Kong people that the construction industry is one
that carries less prestige. Construction workers are also labeled as
having a grassroots background. Many also consider working on
construction sites to be unpleasant and dangerous. The negative
impression inhibits the industry’s ability to attract young talents or
retain the existing skilled workforce. In order to appeal to young
people to join the construction sector, it is important that we project
the industry in positive light. And the CIC did just that by developing
an intensive publicity and promotional campaign.

CIC Cares

Apart from pushing forward the development of the construction
industry, the CIC also attaches great emphasis on the livelihoods
and families of construction workers. In November 2011, for
example, the CIC joined hands with the Development Bureau to
organise an industry-wide “Construction Industry Charity Concert”
to raise over HK$13 million for the Construction Charity Fund.
The proceeds went to the families of workers who lost their lives
in construction-related accidents, and illustrated our devotion to

helping the needy.

All these would not be possible without the dedication and hard
work of CIC staff. We regard our employees as our most valuable
asset, thus additional resources have been allocated to improve
communications with our staff to address their needs on continuous
improvement. Apart from arranging annual staff activities, regular
visits and tea gatherings were also organised at different centres to
grasp a better understanding of their concerns and aspirations.
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Improving Skills Development

The industry and the Government are mindful of whether the
overall manpower resources of the industry can meet the
demand for future developments. Some ten major infrastructural
projects have already embarked on their construction stage. The
implementation of the “Operation Building Bright” campaign also
demanded an increase in skilled workforce. As such, the CIC and
the Development Bureau have adopted a series of measures and
initiatives to strengthen manpower training and enhance the skill
levels of the existing workers.

Since September 2010, the CIC has been implementing in phases
various training and trade testing initiatives to attract more individuals
to join the construction industry. The planning of a Resource Centre
was started in 2011 to provide a platform for job seekers and the
public at large to learn about the construction industry. The CIC will
continue to strengthen our training programmes to meet the needs
of the industry.

2012 Outlook

To conclude, | am extremely gratified that the CIC has made
impressive achievements over the past few years and accomplished
various goals and objectives outlined in the strategic plan. We
have improved site safety and launched environmental initiatives,
boosted the industry’s image, raised awareness and standards
across the industry, conducted high quality, market-driven research
and offered effective training, certification and trade test services.

We cannot, however, be complacent with our achievements.
Moving forward, 2012 will likely be a year of positive growth. The
CIC needs to adopt a more proactive and innovative approach to
continue supporting the healthy and sustainable development of
the construction industry. We must also gear up for the upcoming
amalgamation with the Construction Workers Registration Authority
in the latter part of 2012. The merger will put the CIC in a stronger-
than-ever position to steer the growth of the sector.

Finally, 1 would like to thank all our employees, members of
the Council, Committees, Task Forces and, above all, industry
stakeholders for their continuous support in promoting the healthy
development of the construction industry.

LEE Shing-see, GBS, OBE, JP
CIC Chairman
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Mr. TO Wing, Christopher

Executive Director’s Report
HITHERE

The Construction Industry Council (CIC) has made great strides

and expanded tremendously since its founding almost five years
ago. Today, the CIC has blossomed into a well-established
organisation which is considered a key driving force in shaping the
future direction of the construction industry in Hong Kong. We are
committed to forge ahead with our core and extended functions in
boosting the industry’s development and reflecting its needs and
aspirations to the Government.

As the CIC continues to grow in strength and braces itself for
future challenges, it is crucial that we maintain excellent corporate
governance and impose strict risk management controls. This will
pave the way for us to increase the scope of our contribution to the
development of the construction industry.

Strengthening Governance

CIC staffis required to maintain the highest level of moral and ethical
conduct. All employees are expected to adhere to their Codes of
Conduct while discharging their duties and responsibilities.

As a statutory body, the CIC is determined to stamp out any corrupt
practices. We will continue to seek assistance from the Independent
Commission Against Corruption - Corruption Prevention Department
(ICAC-CPD) to maintain a clean and corruption-free environment
within the establishment.
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The CIC views its employees as one of the organisation’s biggest
assets, and our aim is to make the best use out of our talent pool. Upon
the completion of our Human Resources Review Project, we have
implemented many of its recommendations. A performance-based
appraisal system, for example, was adopted to boost staff morale and

encourage them to strive for excellence.

To further boost staff communication, the CIC moved into its new
headquarters in Wanchai through consolidating a few satellite offices
scattering over different places. Not only is the office equipped with
state-of-the-art facilities, it also allows for extra facilities to cater for our
expansion in the years to come. Ideally located within Hong Kong’s
prime central business district, meanwhile, we have also managed to
improve ties with industry stakeholders. Our proximity to their offices
have made it possible for us to provide better and more efficient services.
Visiting delegates from overseas organisations have expressed their
appreciation of our new headquarters as well.

Meanwhile, plans are in the pipeline to gradually upgrade the rest of our
administrative and training facilities across Hong Kong. The Kowloon
Bay Training Centre, for instance, has already received a facelift and
has generated a lot of positive response.

All of these measures have drastically improved the CIC’s efficiency
and cost-effectiveness. We are now making preparations ahead of
the planned amalgamation with the Construction Workers Registration
Authority scheduled for late 2012. Once the merger is completed, the
CIC will assume a centralised and even more proactive role in facilitating
the growth of the construction industry.

Engaging the Industry / Public

The CIC recognises the importance of engaging both the industry as
well as the public if it is to support the development of the construction
sector. We produced a number of promotional videos that were aired
on Hong Kong’s prime television channels in 2011. The move proved
to be an extremely successful one which not only raised our profile
in the society, but also sent out a clear message to the construction
industry to seek assistance from the CIC on any matters concerning
the industry.
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Our publicity campaigns were also taken to a whole new level in 2011,
organising a number of press conferences and gatherings to update the
media on our latest projects.

Meanwhile, the CIC’s Resource Centre will come into operation in 2012
to provide a one-stop platform for members of the public to learn about
the construction industry. With the use of stunning interactive multi-
media effects and interactive display systems, interested parties get to
experience first-hand how it’s like working on a construction site. The
exhibits have attracted many young people who have now expressed
an interest in developing a career in the industry.

As an advocate of environmentally-friendly developments, the CIC
is committed to combating climate change and reducing the carbon
footprint of Hong Kong. Preparations are now in full swing ahead of
the grand opening of our Zero Carbon Building in 2012. Located within
the Kowloon East Central Business District (CBD2) at Kowloon Bay,
the CIC’s signature project is the first of its kind in the city aimed at
educating both the construction industry and the public on eco-building
technologies and sustainable living. The project is the result of the
concerted efforts of professionals, academics and environmentalists
from all walks of life who share the same aspiration of cutting carbon
emissions in Hong Kong. As the sole funding-backer of the Hong Kong
Green Building Council (HKGBC), the CIC vows to continue working
hand-in-hand with the HKGBC to promote green building initiatives.

The “Construction Industry Charity Concert” was another major event
that the CIC undertook in 2011. The concert was jointly organised with
the Development Bureau as well as a number of other establishments,
and its success is a standing proof of the solidarity within the
construction industry. The fund raised from the concert was donated
to the Construction Charity Fund to help the families of workers who
lost their lives in construction-related accidents. This event is only one
of many that demonstrate the CIC’s desire to fulfill our social corporate
responsibilities.

Driving the Construction Industry

The CIC has been doing whatever it takes to improve the prospect and
working conditions of the construction industry. We have embarked on
a number of research studies, organised seminars and workshops on
topics that are of interest to the industry, and set out a framework of key
performance indicators to boost the safety and efficiency of the sector.
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One of our major challenges is tackling labour shortage and the
skills mismatch within the construction industry. Phase one of our
Manpower Research Model has been completed in 2011. Phase
two, which involves the adjustment and fine-tuning of the model,
will be carried out in 2012. Once completed, it is hoped that the
model will provide a better forecast of future labour demands to
more effectively address our manpower issues.

With the continuous support of the government, we implemented
The
programme, which was aimed at providing effective training for

the Enhanced Construction Manpower Training Scheme.

construction workers, proved to be very successful and nurtured
many young talents to work in the sector.

We are also highly committed to expanding the scope of our training
services. The CIC liaised with the Tai Po District Council in 2011
and conducted risk assessments with the hope of building a new
training ground in the area. Through the Contractors Cooperative
Training Scheme where the construction industry would themselves
offer special training courses, the CIC was able to ensure that there

was always a wide range of programmes on offer to trainees.

Conclusion

2011 has been a thrilling year for the construction industry, and there
are bound to be even more challenges and uncertainties ahead.
If the CIC is to continue its key role in backing the ever-growing
construction industry, it is vital for us to be well-equipped and well-
prepared for what'’s in store. We will continue to work hand in hand
with the government and our stakeholders to foster a bright future
for the construction industry.

| am also highly grateful to our Chairman, Council Members as well
as our colleagues for their never-ending support. Without them, the
CIC would not be what it is today. Exciting opportunities await us
and | am looking forward to working even more closely with you all
to strive for unity and excellence within Hong Kong’s construction
industry going forward.

TO Wing, Christopher
Executive Director
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About the Construction Industry Council

The Construction Industry Council (CIC) was formed on 1 February
2007 under the Construction Industry Council Ordinance Cap.
587. CIC consists of a chairman and 24 members representing
various sectors of the industry including employers, professionals,
academics, contractors, workers, independent persons and

Government officials.

The main functions of CIC are to forge consensus on long-term
strategic issues, convey the industry’s needs and aspirations
to Government, as well as provide a communication channel for
Government to solicit advice on all construction-related matters.

To learn more about the CIC, please visit <www.hkcic.org>.
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Under Section 5 of the Construction
Industry Council Ordinance, CIC has the
following functions:

1.

to advise and make recommendations to the Government on
strategic matters, major policies and legislative proposals, that
may affect or are connected with the construction industry, and

on matters of concern to the construction industry;

to reflect to the Government the construction industry’s needs

and aspirations;

to elevate the quality and competitiveness of the construction
industry by promoting the ongoing development and

improvement of the industry;

to uphold professionalism and integrity within the construction
industry by promoting self-regulation, formulating codes of

conduct and enforcing such codes;
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10.

1.

12.

13.

to improve the performance of persons connected with the
construction industry through establishing or administering
registration schemes or rating schemes;

to advance the skills of personnel in the construction industry

through planning, promotion, supervision, provision or

coordination of training courses or programmes;

to encourage research activities and the use of innovative
techniques and to establish or promote the establishment of
standards for the construction industry;

to promote good practices in the construction industry in relation
to dispute resolution, environmental protection, multi-layer
subcontracting, occupational safety and health, procurement
methods, project management and supervision, sustainable
constructionand otherareas conducive toimproving construction
quality;

. to enhance the cohesiveness of the construction industry by

promoting harmonious labour relations and the observance of
statutory requirements relating to employment, and by facilitating
communication among various sectors of the industry;

to serve as a resource centre for the sharing of knowledge and
experience within the construction industry;

to assess improvements made by the construction industry
through the compilation of performance indicators;

to make recommendations with respect to the rate of the levy
imposed under this Ordinance; and

to perform any other functions relevant to the construction
industry, including those functions conferred or imposed on it by
or under this Ordinance or any other enactment.
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13.
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Under Section 6 of the CIC Ordinance, the
supplementary functions of CIC are:
1. to provide training courses for the construction industry;

2. to establish and maintain industrial training centres for the construction
industry;

3. to assist, including by the provision of financial assistance, in the
placement of persons who have completed training courses provided for
the construction industry;

4. to assess the standards of skills achieved by any person in any kind of
work involving or in connection with the construction industry, to conduct
examinations and tests, to issue or award certificates of attendance or
competence, and to establish the standards to be achieved in respect of
any such work;

5. where it is appointed under the Construction Workers Registration
Ordinance (Cap 583) as the Registrar of Construction Workers under that
Ordinance, to perform the functions conferred orimposed on the Registrar
by or under that Ordinance or any other enactment.

P.20 CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2011

B(BEXRBEGH) Hofs  MEAHMITMMAE
mF:
1. FREXRREHIIRRE

2. RBEXERY RERERIIRTL

3. BB EKAREFREHAIRRIZHARE 8
AR BURBIA T 4G T8

4. FRMEMAESREER S EEERAENERRE
B TE T H S ERMRMKF W AERZET
TERITEZ LB BB B B R ERE RN
IKFEREMR]E BEBHIKE

5. (MFERE (EEXETAZMEH) (5£583%)
BRERZEO THREET AEMEME) MITZ
{ER B SAE (AT EL A B SOR BB T 3R Tt i A B
B R BRI PR EMEMR ORI THE T
AR EERREE -




HERE

Executive Director
HITHE

PR Kk

Director - Training
s - 353

Mr. WONG Doon-yee, Charles

Y= £E

Training
s3I

Senior Manager -
Safety Training &

Manager -
Trainees
Recruitment &
Placement
1R -
ZEAER
MEHE

Manager -
Trade Testing
(Aberdeen Centre)
&3 - TERE

(BBFHL)

Manager -
Workers
Registration
T A

Manager -
Management &
Safety Training

Manager -
Construction
Training
Kowloon Bay Centre)
P8
K&
(NEEEPL)

Manager -
Construction
Training
Kwai Chung Centre)
2 - R
(€310

Manager -
Construction

Senior Manager -
Construction

Secretary
(CITB)
B
ZEENE

Manager -
Development
Service
K -8R

Manager -

Training
(Sheung Shui Centre)
12 - FaigsEE
(kA

Centre
#3E -
EERZE
FEEIY

Special Projects

=HER

Mr. TO Wing, Christopher

Organisation Chart

Council Sevices

HEBH

Senior Manager -
Development &
Support Services

T

Senior Manager -
Council Services

Manager -
Council

Services
3 -

EES

Manager -
Council

Services
#3E -

BEEH

Manager -

Manager -
Council

Council
Services
#TE -
EES

Manager -
Council

Services
118 -

BEEH

Manager -
Marketing &
Corporate
Communications
£ -
HEEREREER

Senior Manager -
Council Services

Senior Manager -
Research

Senior Manager -
Human Resources
& Administration

Senior Manager -
Finance
= "Ii _

Manager -
Research
K - R

Human
Resources
Manager
ANERERE

Manager -
Finance
&5 - B

Manager -
IT
IR -
EMRHE

Human
Resources
Manager
ANERERE

Senior Auditor
SRETTRD

Manager -
Facility
Management &
Administration
#53E -
MHEBR
T

(as of 31 December 2011)
(M20115128310)

BEXBE_T— —FEFH

P.21




& RERRE

We are pleased to present the Corporate Governance Report for the year
ended 31 December 2011.

Commitment to Corporate Governance

CIC has established a corporate governance system which is contained
within the corporate governance manual. This is to further strengthen our
foundation in order to pursue objectives that are in the interests of CIC and its
stakeholders with the view of facilitating effective monitoring. On this basis we
are committed to building an effective corporate governance system aiming
at:

+ Contributing to the effective performance of the roles and functions of CIC;

+ Serving to maintain the trust built on CIC by the public regarding the use
and stewardship of levies collected and other assets which CIC is entrusted;
and

+ Enhancing stakeholders’ confidence that CIC upholds the best quality with
the highest ethical standards.

Governance

The governance of the CIC is monitored by the Construction Industry Council
(the “Council”). The Council consists of a chairman and 24 members (the
“Members”) representing various sectors of the industry. The Council provides
strategic guidance and leadership, sets overall direction and monitors
organisational and managerial performance. The Council has delegated
certain of its functions under the remit of the Construction Industry Council
Ordinance to eight committees (the Committees), including the Construction
Industry Training Board. The Council had convened six meetings in 2011.
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The Chairman of the CIC leads the organisation to establish collaborative
relationship among stakeholders and the Government. Under his leadership,
the CIC promotes its roles and functions so as to arouse public awareness
on the construction industry and pursue excellence in the industry. The
Executive Director is a non-public officer and a separate individual from the
Chairman of the CIC and the Members, responsible for the entire operations
under the CIC remit and executes the strategies set by the Council and its

Committees.

CIC is devoted to effective governance and in addition to the bi-monthly
meetings among the Chairman and senior management of the CIC, CIC
established the Strategic Planning Steering Committee (SPSC) represented
by the Chairman, the chairmen of the various committees of the CIC and
the Permanent Secretary for Development (Works). The SPSC strives for
enhancing concerted strategies among the various committees of the CIC
and advises the Council on strategic matters that affect the industry.

Five Cornerstones

CIC’s corporate governance system is built on five cornerstones, namely
Standard of Behaviour, Organisation Structure and Business Processes, Risk
Management and Control, Reporting and Communications and Corporate
Citizenship.

Standard of Behaviour

CIC has specific Codes of Conduct for Members and its staff which Members
and staff are expected to adhere to when discharging their duties and
responsibilities. CIC stresses a clean and corruption free environment within
its establishment and has invited the Corruption Prevention Department
(the CPD) of the Independent Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) to
hold regular trainings/courses/seminars to our trade testing staff in 2011 to
refresh their knowledge and skills to handle suspected incidences in relation

to corruption and to prevent such from happening in the first incidence.

Organisation Structure and Business Processes
The recommendations arising from the external human resources consultant
are gradually being implemented. The organisation structure has been
enhanced to support the CIC’s enlarged function of collaboration with the
industry and the Government. As CIC reckons the success of its operations
and its executions rely on the endeavours of its management staff, the Human
Resources Department has embarked on a series of training as part of its
staff development programme to support the work of staff, so that staff can
carry out such duties diligently.
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Risk Management and Control

The CIC has established a five year strategic plan setting the tone for
development in the near future. A detailed annual plan is worked out annually.
Incorporated in the strategic plan are the departmental goals to be achieved
which form the basis to assess the achievements of the departments and its
individuals.

A risk management mechanism was established in the current year.
Management staff were invited to provide their views and comments towards
the risk assessment with the results being reported to the Committee on
Administration and Finance which further advised and commented on the
CIC risk profile. The risk assessment result was incorporated within the
internal audit plan and was used to assist management to deploy appropriate
resources to those high priority risk areas, which needed attention.

The Internal Audit Team undertook the following key projects in 2011:

i. Executing internal audit projects to review compliance with the laid
down policies and procedures and business process effectiveness and
efficiency. Areas of review included treasury process, levy collection,
committee operations and marketing processes;

ii. Establishing the corporate governance manual; and

ii. Reviewing reported cases concerning suspected violations to the CIC
policies and procedures and suggesting improvement measures to
prevent such incidents from happening again in the near future.

Furtherance to the internal audit work, the CIC continues to seek assistance
from the Independent Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) to enhance
the business processes which may be vulnerable to possible corruption from
occurring. In 2011, the ICAC commenced a study on the administration of
trade tests within the CIC and with the findings CIC hopes to further strengthen
its trade test operations in due course.

The external auditors independently carried out the statutory audits and no
other non-audit work had been engaged during the year.

Reporting and Communication

CIC continues to strengthen its ties with the various stakeholders, the
Government and the industry and in 2011 it published three newsletters,
distributing such to 130 organisations to keep them updated on the
developments of CIC and the industry at large. In addition to publishing the
training and trade testing output statistics on the CIC website, a bi-monthly
CIC training academy report was issued to the Hong Kong Construction
Association to highlight the latest initiatives and manpower trends.
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CIC proactively updates the public about its new initiatives via press briefings
andpress releases. CIC holds regular meetings with the Development Bureau
to exchange ideas and ways to enhance the industry. CIC also extended its
outreach to overseas organisations and had received construction industry
delegates from Finland, France, Korea and Indonesia to share and exchange
experiences as well as ideas with the ultimate aim of creating a positive
image going forward.

CIC treasures the opinions raised by the public and is committed to
addressing enquiries proactively with a pledge to provide a reply (or interim
reply where appropriate) within 5 working days. CIC would follow up on the
opinions raised where appropriate to continue enhancing its operations and
its services to the industry and public at large.

Corporate Citizenship
The CIC staff and trainees have been participating in various kinds of events
relating to corporate social responsibilities. Three main areas of focus were

targeted, namely:

i. Contributing to the charitable donation programmes held by the
Community Chest, Médecins Sans Frontieres, and Oxfam Hong Kong.

ii. Contributing to society by volunteering and employing the less privileged.
Walk for Millions and blood donation are our regular annual events. In
2011, CIC supported World Visions Hong Kong in a 30-hour Famine
activity, joined the Hong Kong Dragon Boat Association in the Hong Kong
International Dragon Boat Races and co-organised the Construction
Industry Charity Concert to raise funds for the Construction Charity Fund.
CIC also engaged the services rendered by Fu Hong Society Supported
Employment Service.

iii. Contributing to environmental protection by establishing the Committee on
Environmental and Sustainability Issues to draw in efforts from all our staff
to focus on reducing, recycling and being eco-friendly. CIC has placed
recycle bins in its premises and has kept track of the use of environmental
friendly products including recycled paper and air-conditioners that have
energy saving labels.

Recognising CIC’s efforts in corporate social responsibilities, CIC was
awarded the Caring Organisation by the Hong Kong Council of Social
Services during the year.
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A great leap forward for the Construction Industry Council as it
enters its fifth year of service. Established in 2007, the CIC has been
entrusted with the duties of providing a platform to unify the efforts of
different stakeholders within the construction industry. Since then,
the CIC has been striving to meet the needs of its stakeholders with
the goal of driving for improvements within the industry.
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From a few staff back in 2007 when the CIC was established almost

five years ago and the amalgamation with the then Construction
Industry Training Authority in 2008, the Council has expanded into
an organisation of a sizeable scale. With the concerted effort of
Members, industry stakeholders and the Government, the CIC
has accomplished a number of key tasks over the past few years.
Substantial developments were made in 2011 and will now be
elaborated further.
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Internal Development

In keeping with the Construction Industry Council’s commitment to continuously improve the quality of its services, the CIC initiated new efforts

to meet the growing needs of those involved with the industry. On this basis, an effective facilitation is of paramount importance.
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New Headquarters

The new CIC Headquarters in Wanchai came into operation in
2011. The relocation offers more space to accommodate current
programmes and created capacity for further expansion in the coming
years. The new state-of-the-art office also served as a perfect location
for stakeholders, as well as local and overseas visitors, to meet.
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|.T. System Revamp
To make the CIC more automated, an information technology
services review was completed and nine |.T. projects have been

initiated. They include:

i.  Trade Test and Training Course Information System

i. Trade Test Management System

ii. Training Course Management System

iv. Voluntary Sub-Contractor Registration System

v.  Electronic Document Management System Phase One
vi. Human Resources Management System Phase One
vii. Procurement Management System Phase One

viii. Levy Assessment and Collection System Enhancement

ix. Disaster Recovery Setup Phase One
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People Management

The community at large has already accepted the proposition of
pay-for-performance and as an industry-wide organisation, the CIC
needs to comply with the expectation of its stakeholders. As such,
the CIC’s Human Resources Review suggested the adoption of
a performance-based appraisal system to boost staff morale and
efficiency. The system is now in place and there is no doubt that
CIC employees have become more motivated and driven towards

success.

All these initiatives have raised the profile of the CIC. With
anticipated growth expected, the CIC is now in a stronger-than-ever
position to take matters forward to meet the growing expectations
of industry stakeholders.

Striving for Excellence of the Industry

AEEH
ANBREREAR
. BEESEEE
BE Mzeg
| (ERERATR
BT
- RFEHFDE
MEAE - At F WA NERBRNEZRANERRERNE
ZHIE RSB TR TIERE - ZHERLEE T WiRE
BEEIFEMBEEEHBRKD -

HREREDREATHEOER BHENNER BERERE
R EARENMME MERAFNERAERRZNHE-

The CIC is dedicated to its role of serving as a platform for industry stakeholders to work together towards a more promising future. This is

being carried out through a number of different means.
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Knowledge Enrichment

Collaboration and communication are key elements in boosting the
development of the construction industry. A whole-day inaugural
conference named “The Construction Industry — A Safe and
Equitable Approach” was held in March, providing a platform for
stakeholders to share their knowledge and acquire the latest

information on construction trends, both domestically and globally.

Taking things one step further, nine forums, seminars and
workshops covering various aspects of industry-interested topics
from collaborative contracting, safety, and construction technology
to sub-contracting were organised by the CIC. They were aimed
at updating and strengthening the knowledge base of industry
practitioners and assisting them in their day-to-day tasks to create a
better environment for all.
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Good Practices

Owing to the willingness of industry practitioners to share their
valuable knowledge and experience, the CIC has been able
to issue regular guidelines to promulgate the importance of
maintaining good practices throughout the construction life
cycle.
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The CIC is a staunch supporter of construction safety. Workers’
well-being cannot be compromised in any event, and the CIC will do
what it takes to safeguard their interests. In order to minimise the
number of construction accidents, two guidelines and one safety
alert were issued in 2011 to not only remind the industry of the
importance of adhering to safety regulations, but also to engage in
responsible practices. They include:

i.  Technical Guidelines on the Design, Installation & Maintenance
of Cast-in Anchors at External Walls of New Buildings

i. Guidelines on Handling Construction Work Injury and Fatal
Accident Cases

ii. Safety Alert 001/11 on the Fabrication of Reinforcement Cages
of Bored Piles
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Report on Activities
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The CIC also advocates a clean working environment. As such,
the Guidelines on Trip Ticket System for Disposal of Construction
& Demolition Materials was published to help industry practitioners

better monitor the movement of construction waste.
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F == mp The impact of inflation and the rise in material prices are a source

Contract Price Fluchsation System
SHMNAENE

of worry for the industry and may hinder our growth. Through the
publication of the Guidelines on Contract Price Fluctuation System,
the CIC took on a proactive role to help the industry better manage

such risks.
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These sets of good practices could not have been produced without

the valuable input from industry practitioners. A large number of
volunteers represepting construction project clients, professional
organisations, trade associations, academics, labour unions and
even government officials contributed their expertise and efforts
to the preparation of the guidelines through their participation in
various committees, task forces and working groups.
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Research

Many of these guidelines are also backed by the results of scientific
research or studies. Several research studies commenced during
the year in collaboration with industry stakeholders, research
institutes and academia. They are:

i. Roadmap for wider application of prefabrication and- modular
construction (in-house research)

ii. Adhesion technology of external wall tiles (external research)

ii. Carbon labeling of construction material (external research)

iv. Definition and scope of duties of construction site supervision

personnel (external research)

v. River sand substitutes (external research)
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Realising the issues of payment problems within the construction supply chain, the CIC worked hand-in-hand with the Development Bureau
on the survey on payment practice in the construction industry. The purpose was to ascertain the scale of the payment problems and
the views of the industry on the need for legislation to secure payments throughout the entire construction supply chain. Once the survey
results are known, the CIC will review them and suggest appropriate strategies going forward.
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Market Transformation

On growing concerns over climate change and global warming, many are now “going
green” by switching over to a healthier and more sustainable lifestyle. Here in Hong
Kong, the CIC has taken the lead by putting theory into practice. Our signature
project, the city’s first zero carbon building (ZCB) will be completed in mid 2012. The
eco-friendly development is a reflection of the CIC’s active engagement in green

building movement and the industry’s commitment to cutting carbon emissions in

the long run.
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Meeting Manpower Needs
As many of the territory’s mega infrastructural projects enter into their construction stage, the sector is facing an increasing tension in labour

shortage. Many of our workers will soon be reaching their retirement age. Another major problem that needs to be tackled is a mismatch
in skills. One of the CIC’s key missions, therefore, is to attract fresh blood into the industry and provide appropriate training according to
the latest manpower demands. L
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JobsNet

In an effort to attract talents into the industry, the CIC organised
a number of job fairs for the industry. The CIC also launched the
‘JobsNet” to provide an electronic and easily-accessible platform for
interested individuals to look for jobs. The highly-popular website
boasts the participation of up to 220 employers and provides more
than 940 vacancies, and attracted tens of thousands of hits since its
official launch on 18 October 2011.
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Training

The Councilimplemented the Enhanced Construction Manpower Training Scheme
in 2011, and the training output for the year ending 31 December 2011 was 458.
The total training output for the academic year 2010/11, meanwhile, stood at 1,337
for full time courses and 67,753 for part time courses. A total of 15,063 candidates
also took part in various trade tests for the year ending 31 December 2011.
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149 trainees also took part in the Contractors Cooperative Training
Scheme and another 30 commenced training in 2012.

In order to meet the industry’s latest needs, the CIC developed 13
new training courses including heritage conservation as well as
the highly demanded site safety courses for site management and
supervisory personnel. While the CIC relocated its training facilities
from Sheung Yuet Road Training Ground to other locations, plans
are also on hand to build a new training ground in Tai Po. The CIC
will also step up efforts to identify new training grounds in suitable

accessible areas to attract new entrants to the industry.

In the past year, CIC trainees actively took part in three construction
trade competitions in the “41st WorldSkills Competition 2011” and
one of them won the Medallion of Excellence in the Wall and Floor
Tiling Trade, signifying the recognition of CIC trainees in delivering
quality workmanship of the highest standard.

HBEN—F #QEESHE [ F4EHREEARE2011] h=(F
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Skills Exchange
In order to tap into overseas experiences, the CIC bolstered its
exchange with Mainland and overseas organisations in Australia,

Indonesia and Malaysia to strengthen the skills of those trainees

under the various training schemes.
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Building Image of the Industry

The CIC prides itself over how much it has done to help the construction sector grow over the years, and there’s a need for both the industry and
the public to acknowledge its role. In building the CIC’s corporate image as well as the image of the industry at large, the CIC set forward three
key ingredients for success — Awareness, Apprehension and Appreciation commonly known as the “3 Straight A's”.

BITRER
FZEREFURBEMERBERNBRREI AR MAREAFTEEMERMARERMANRE -ATELRZGUEEEAZERR
MITRER SeE PR T =([EKRNNAERER - B R RBE -

Awareness
In terms of raising the public’s awareness about the CIC, a number of TV
commercials were aired on television. Advertisements placed at bus shelters

as well as journals helped boost the Council’s presence in the community at

ETE_\!EJ_ IN& Tn%Amwuuﬁkﬁﬁ n%zA EFT ?Zﬂﬂ_‘?iﬁ: ?‘ﬁi%l‘ﬁ NP FE
AHEAERET FRRARME LTIEES - ARBYRSTEHRMEE
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Apprehension 25

Building on public engagement, a series of RTHK documentary  &TWRSIARKTHE 28 HH—R7|H R [BELHEXR] HER
episodes named “A Dream Comes True” were aired in prime- HF &% EE2&RKER E/’% B R ERSITREHRWE M
time television slots which attracted a large number of audience. BB LEREHFERNRLSARE  WRRZEXAEBTBHERN
Many were of the view that the programme was touching andthey HTEE-ATHE—PIRESLEGHERNTHE HLFER2012F7E
formed an impression that the industry was doing something good BEEVEMPO RESIMAREENATIRIAE Sz
for Hong Kong. To supplement, the CIC established a Resource ~ MEE - 8252 E1TEN TIEER -

Centre that world come into operation in Kowloon Bay in 2012. The

\

centre’s main mission is to engage those contemplating in joining
the industry. Through interactive games and displays, visitors and
potential job seekers could experience first-hand what it’s like to

work in the construction sector.




Appreciation

With corporate social responsibility high on the CIC’s agenda, a charity concert was jointly organised with the Development Bureau. The
proceeds, amounting to over HK$13 million dollars, went to the Construction Charity Fund which provides financial assistance to the families
of construction workers who unfortunately lost their lives in construction-related accidents. Such scale of co-operation in a single event was
unprecedented. The activity was a show of unity and solidarity among industry stakeholders towards the construction industry.

R

TENHEETMERSFR INETER WESRERPHSENT [BEXEZTEEE] - FPESNEXBEEE —T=7
Bt RABREEIF RN T RRERHQBERE  #RMMNME 2 = - RRRBETHRERE RS IETA LHE L BRI BE
M &R E 2 BEE— B BOmNeiEe

Conclusion ot

2011 has been a year of challenges and the CIC is proud to have 201152 FEm kB —F - B U RIAT(E L BUS AV IEIR £ R &
made such positive progress. Laying down a solid foundation ZIEZ - EREKRASENTIEETE TRELR  thRKINE
which will set the scene for future endeavours is an ingredient for ~ FER & < FEtE  HMF LR ESNEENREREBIARD
success. Special thanks must be given to the CIC’s former and ~ BVEEH < REMFINT I - Efd EFIRBIMFF ZITIE TN AlBEElM 7T
current Members. Without them, many of the items mentioned in & ° B FIRIEF £3587 hn A B9 K B SRR B - BRI 75 SR BT e B Ak -
this report would not have been possible. The CIC would also like BN —FHEEE R IR -

to welcome its new Members, who bring in new ideas and act as

a catalyst to drive the CIC’s development further in the years to

come.

With your continuous support and co-operation, the CIC is confident H IR E  AAR T FHEBOIBE RS2 REBES &
that it will continue to make great strides in 2012 and meet the ~ 2012F FAIEAE @ Wi @ BE X AR EMA KA E IR RAOFT R
increasing demands and opportunities of the construction industry, ~ EEXFRERNEE - R2EE B0 HAIATARBMANLS AL

now and the future. Together we can make things happen for the =~ EX4FHIBRR

betterment of our society.
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'January
1A

12. 01. 2011 21-22. 01. 2011 / 25-26. 02. 2011

Technical Seminar - Collaborative Contracting Approach CIC Training Academy Open Day
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N 27.01. 2011
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" Technical Seminar - Safety of Lift Shaft Works

Al (During Construction Stage and Before Handing Over to Lift Installation Contractor) - (Additional Session)
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February
2R

17-20. 02. 2011 26-27. 02. 2011 / 15-16. 10. 2011

Education & Career Expo 2011 Job Fair for the Construction Industry (Co-organised with MTR)
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March
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11. 03. 2011 :

Inaugual O Conlaency
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Inaugural CIC Conference - “The Construction Industry — A Safe and Equitable Approach” (Co-organised with Development Bureau)
BEEXESEREMNE - [BEX — BRREEATZE] (BERBAM)
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Construction Industry Safety Award Scheme - Award Presentation/  CIC Training Academy Sports Day cum Fun Day
27" Exhibition Tour 2010/2011 (Co-organised with Labour Department) 5 3& % 3 & 5| SRS e 18 B & iz 8 H
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=i April
‘ﬂr L 48
= 08.04.201M 15. 04. 2011
N
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=
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o
o 5 Voluntary Subcontractor Registration Scheme Briefing Session Technical Seminar - Use of Prefabrication and Modularisation:
N ERFIMES RAEMEIEENE Innovation and Enhancement
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Workshop on “Zero Carbon Building Design and Technologies”
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May
5H

20. 05. 2011

Opening Reception of CIC Headquarters
REXZSENHAEES
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Construction Safety Forum and Award Presentation (Co-organised  Activities on Lu Pan Patron’s Day
2" with OSHC) BITERNEILES
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5 July
7H
22.07. 2011 30. 07. 2011

Technical Seminar - Safety of Tower Cranes CIC Training Academy Formwork Recruitment Day
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September
9H

30. 09. 2011

Dinner Reception of the Hong Kong Construction Industry to Celebrate the 62" Anniversary of the PRC (Co-organised with Other Stakeholders)
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October
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5-8. 10. 2011

The 41st WorldSkills Competition
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! Technical Seminar - Building Information Modelling for the Future
- BT g - RREMBELHRREERNTE
i B

November
11H

10-11. 2011 03. 11. 2011

“Build Up” Training Programme Roving Exhibition Seminar - Zero Carbon Building Design and Technologies
B [Build 7+ S B ERE e - THEEMRTERE
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November
11H

24.11. 2011

Construction Industry Charity Concert (Jointly Organised with DEVB; Co-organised with Hon Abraham SHEK, HKCA, HKFEMC,
HKCSA & HKCIEGU)
BEXRTERES (HERBIM WEAONGHREE HERERS NS IREANE SEREX EANE
RERBREERISAN)

Mr. Andy HUI generously volunteered to perform at the Concert CIC Training Academy Graduation Ceremony 2011
R EAREFELREREBGRIEER BiEEIIREBHR20MFEREME
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December
N 12H

03. 12. 2011 16. 12. 2011
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Quality Public Housing Construction and Maintenance Awards  Seminar - Handling Construction Work Injury and Site Safety
i 2011 (Co-organised with Hong Kong Housing Authority) e -
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Committee on Administration
and Finance Report

TBREMBEER

Chairman £

Mr LEE Shing-see THAT R
Members BR

CIC Members BERE

Ir CHAN Siu-hung

Ir WONG Wing-hoo, Billy

Mr YU Wai-wai

Permanent Secretary for Development (Works)

Terms of Reference

1.

To advise CIC on staff matters, including recruitment, salary
and other conditions of service.

To advise CIC on general administration matters, including
accommodation and facilities.

To co-ordinate and prepare annual estimates of income
and expenditure and programme of activities for approval of
CIC.

To recommend appropriate investments of surplus funds.

To advise CIC on other financial matters.
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Highlights of financial results

In the financial aspect, the total income of CIC for the year 2011 was
$432.94 million (2010: $351.41 million) representing an increase of
23.2%. The total expenditure for the year 2011 was $317.44 million
(2010: $259.95 million). The impairment loss on available-for-sale
investments reclassified from equity and recognised in profit and
loss for the year 2011 was $8.32 million (2010: nil). The operating
result for the year after the impairment loss on available-for-sale
investments showed a surplus of $107.18 million (2010: $91.46

million).

In 2011 there was $1.18 miillion loss in other comprehensive income
for the year. This $1.18 million represented a net decrease in fair
value of the available-for-sale securities investments held at the
balance sheet date (2010: decrease of $3.68 million) which was
recognised in 2011 in accordance with the requirement of the
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards. Setting off against
the 2011 surplus of $107.18 million (2010: $91.46 million), total
comprehensive income for 2011 amounted to $106.00 million (2010:
$87.78 million).

Construction levy amounted to $365.54 million in 2011 (2010:
$298.39 million), which accounted for about 84.4% of the total
income of the year, was the main source of income of the Council.
The increase of levy income by 22.5% from 2010 was mainly due
to more income received from building and civil engineering works
undertaken in the year 2011 particularly in public sector and others.
Levies assessed on the value of the construction works in private
sector, public sector and others (others included port and airport
development, Mass Transit Railway, Express Rail Link, South Island
Line, Kwun Tong Line Extension, West Island Line and Shatin /
Central Line) were $162.82 million, $152.04 million and $50.31
million respectively, representing 44.5%, 41.6% and 13.8% of the
total levy income for 2011. In addition, penalty received on overdue
levy was $0.37 million (0.1% of the total levy income) for 2011.

The investment and interest income for 2011 was $10.25 million as
compared to $5.87 million for 2010. The increase in income for 2011
was mainly due to higher interest earnings (contributed by both
principal and interest rate) from placing time deposits in banks.
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Course fees and related income, another major type of income for
the Council amounted to $26.18 million in 2011 (2010: $26.79 million).
The trade testing income for 2011 was $6.14 million (2010: $4.62
million). Increase in other income was mainly due to reimbursement
of trainees’ allowances from the Government (total other income for
2011 was $24.84 million as compared to $15.73 million in 2010).

Total expenditure in 2011 was $317.44 milion as compared to
$259.95 million in 2010, representing an increase of 22.1%. Major
items included:-

e Staff costs amounted to $188.60 million in 2011 as compared to
$169.11 million in 2010. The increase of 11.5% was mainly due to
salary increment effective from April 2011, more staff employed
to provide services for the enlarged duties and functions of CIC,
and full year effect of the new and vacant posts filled from 2010
onwards.

¢ Training expenses amounted to $47.56 million in 2011 (2010:
$38.37 miillion) representing an increase of 24.0%. The increase
was mainly due to the increase in trainees’ allowances in respect
to enhanced construction manpower training for selected trades
under the Government’s initiative of “Investing in Construction
Manpower” Scheme and for existing training courses plus
expenses for Contractor Co-operative Training Scheme.

* Workshop expenses increased by 10.2% and amounted to
$15.92 million in 2011 (2010: $14.45 million). The increase was
mainly due to the rise in the expenses for consumable materials
and tools used in the CIC Training Academy training centres and
training grounds.

¢ General and administrative expenses amounted to $38.49 million
in 2011 (2010: $21.98 miillion). The increase by 75.1% in 2011 was
mainly due to the consultancy fees incurred for the construction
of the Zero Carbon Building and the Resource Centre, the
consultancy fees for human resources and pay review, the rental
and management fees for the CIC Headquarters and the funding
support for the operating activities of the Hong Kong Green
Building Council during the year.
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® Capital commitments of $216.16 million in 2011 (2010: $14.22
million) comprise of contracted capital expenditure for the
establishment and construction of the Zero Carbon Building and
the Resource Centre at Kowloon Bay.

At the end of 2011, the Council held a total of $721.44 million as
its accumulated fund and reserves, compared to $615.44 million
in 2010. The Council continues to place most of the funds in
time deposits and bonds with licensed banks in Hong Kong, and

invest a limited sum in listed shares.

In accordance with the CIC Ordinance, the Council submitted
its annual report for the year ended 31 December 2010 to
the Secretary for Development in June 2011, together with
the audited financial statements for the same period and the
auditor’s report thereof. These were subsequently tabled at the
Legislative Council.
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CIC’s Financial Results and Financial Position (Year ended 31 December)

EERRSVBREB LRV BOION @BE+=A=1+—81)

2011 2010 2009
HK$m £%8 (BB SEET)
Income ON 432.9 351.4 312.0
Expenditure S (317.4) (259.9) (238.3)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale R ENT D N ISR
investments reclassified from equity KERME (8.3) _ ~
Surplus for the year FERS 107.2 91.5 73.7
Other comprehe;nsive ingomg for the year R AR A A
s araieot SR w09 6D e
Reclassification adjustment for impairment @fﬁ&ﬂﬁlfi%ﬁ%ﬁﬁZé%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ 8.3 i i
loss included in profit or loss EEk ;
(1.2) 3.7) 14.6
Total comprehensive income for the year FEEE WAL 106.0 87.8 88.3
NET ASSETS FEE 721.4 615.4 527.6
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CIC Revenue for the Years 2009 to 2011
2009-20MEEREXZREZIMA
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CIC Expenditure for the Years 2009 to 2011
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CIC Revenue, Expenditure & Surplus for the Years 2009 to 2011
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2011 Committee on Construction Site Safety

20METHRZERY
(as of 31 December 2011) | (FA20115F12831H)

Committee Members /
5 %j Co-opted Members
0. EERZE/MBES

Chairman Mr CHEUNG Hau-wai
£ SRER KA
Members CIC Members

54-1 EA=24-

Ir CHEW Tai-chong
AXAE IiZEm

Mr CHOW Luen-kiu
RS ST

Ir HO On-sing, Thomas
Al & TH2AM

Prof KO Jan-ming
=SB B

Mr KWAN Yuk-choi, James
BMEM £4E

Mr LAM Oi-ki, Peter
M A

Mr WAN Koon-sun
BT A

Mr WONG Chik-wing, Mike
EEE L

Director of Buildings
EFEER
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Members
BB

Co-opted Members

BEERE

Ir James BLAKE — Kowloon-Canton Railway Corporation

ER% TR0 — WEEKARAR

Mr CHAN Dick-sang, Philip — Authorised Person

BRIEAE B4 — RAIAL

Mr CHOW Ping-wai — Hong Kong Construction Industry Employee’s General Union
BMREL s —BBEERRT S

Mr lan EDWARDS — The Hong Kong Construction Association

VHEE 4 —HERERS

Ms FUNG Yin-suen, Ada — Hong Kong Housing Authority

KEE X+ —HEFEZE®

Mr KUOK Hoi-sang — The Hong Kong Federation of Electrical and Mechanical Contractors
WEE ek — BERSITIRAHE

Mr KWONG Chiu-ling, Victor — Hong Kong Occupational Safety and Health Association
BUERE T4 — ERBBELHLERS

Mr Dominic LAM — Hong Kong Federation of Insurers

WEHRE tE — BERBEBS

Mr LAU Chi-keung — Real Estate Developers Association of Hong Kong

B8 4 —BEMERRES

Ir LAU Chi-kin — Registered Structural Engineer

215462 Ti2AD — sEiMAsHE TIZRD

Mr FONG Hok-shing, Michael — Development Bureau
FTEH £4E — BER

Mr PANG Long — Construction Site Workers General Union

T Rt — BEMERTAS

Mr PANG Yat-bond, Derrick — The Hong Kong Construction Association
Tkt —BERERS

Mr TANG Wah-shing — Occupational Safety and Health Council

BERE &4 —BEXLZE2RER

Mr TSANG Ting-fat — Hong Kong Construction Sub-Contractors Association
BEE AL —BAREXSEEME

Mr TSE Shek-hung, David — Hong Kong General Building Contractors Association
AW Sk — BERERAERBS

Mr TSO Sing-hin — Labour Department
HEEE S — BTE

Terms of Reference BiEEE

1. To review and monitor site safety performance of the construction industry. 1. AT WS R E R TR 2RI -

2. To identify and recommend measures for improving safety performance to CIC. 2. AR AL 2 RIENEIG WRAES iR HiER

3. To promote adoption of the improvement measures by the industry. 3. M ZEFHE E RN B ©
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Committee Members /
Co-opted Members

ZEESZE/RBEE

2011 Committee on Environment and Technology

201 ERIRRBHBTERASY
(as of 31 December 2011) | (FA20115F12831H)

Chairman Ir WONG Tin-cheung, Conrad
Y FHRAE T2

Members CIC Members

54-1 EA=24-

Ir Dr CHAN Ka-ching, Andrew
PR3z 11 THEAM

Ir CHAN Siu-hung

PRARLE TH2AM

Mr CHEUNG Hau-wai
SRERL S

Mr HO Wai-wah

fAfEEE &

Prof KO Jan-ming

SER #R

Mr KWAN Yuk-choi, James
BEM k&

Mr LAM Wo-hei
MRANEE S A

Prof LEE Hun-wai, Joseph
FITE IR

Mr YU Kam-hung

REBIE KHE

Mr YU Wai-wai
REBE K&

Permanent Secretary for Transport and Housing (Housing)
BHREERRENER (FE)

1
Director of Bui 1 r

ESSS WA | S =
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Members Co-opted Members

HR

BEES

Mr CHAN Pai-ming, Jimmy — Development Bureau

BRIKR 4 — BRE

Mr CHEUNG Tat-tong — The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors

RER KL —BBRHEMEE

Mr CHOW Ping-wai — Hong Kong Construction Industry Employee’s General Union

BREL e —BBRERETS

Mr Dan FUNG — Environmental Protection Department

BELE B — RFEREE

Mr HO Pun-hing — The Hong Kong Federation of Electrical and Mechanical Contractors

fZf et — BBRETIERHE

Mr Russell JONES — The Hong Kong Construction Association

B A4E —BARERS

Ir LEE Kai-kwong, Peter — The University of Hong Kong

FROL TR — BBAR

Mr PANG Long — Construction Site Workers General Union

Tt — BB TAS

Mr PANG Yat-bond, Derrick — The Hong Kong Construction Association

Tkt —BBRERS

Ms YEUNG Kwong-yim, Connie — Hong Kong Housing Authority

Bttt x+ —BEFEZES

Terms of Reference

1.

To make recommendations on improving the environmental friendliness
of buildings and infrastructures including measures for enhancing energy
efficiency, improving indoor environmental quality and minimising loading
on the environment.

. Torecommend good practices for improving the environmental performance

of construction contracts including measures for abating environmental
nuisances and reducing waste generation.

. To co-ordinate and promote construction research and development and

facilitate practical application of research results by the construction industry.

. To advise on the strategy for development of construction standards.

. To develop systems for assessing the performance of the construction

industry.

R E

1. REEZ UEBFREZBEBRRERYS €
BAEMRT RN G MEZARRE R ULE
ERERBARNEZ-

2. IRERESNRBERRVRIMER T NIRHZ
& BIRERBLE MR EYE NS -

3. WA R EERERM T RER WIRERERR
ERBBBIATHER -
4. SLFIE R EEENRIBRHER -

5. AIEREFRRITAFEHIE
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Committee Members /
Co-opted Members

ZEREA/MBER

2011 Committee on Procurement

20MERBERY
(as of 31 December 2011) | (FA20115F12831H)

Chairman

£33

Ir CHEW Tai-chong
BB Ti2ED

Members
BE

Members
BER

Terms of Reference

CIC Members

BERE

Ir Dr CHAN Ka-ching, Andrew
BREIE B Ti2Em

Ir CHAN Siu-hung
BRARTE TAZAD

Ir HO On-sing, Thomas
a3 TH2AM

Mr HO Wai-wah
fAfEEE L&

Mr LAM Oi-ki, Peter
REE 4

Mr LAM Wo-hei
MRANEE S A

Mr YU Kam-hung
REBLE KL

Permanent Secretary for Transport and Housing (Housing)
BRkEERFEMNER (BE)

Co-opted Members
BHZES

Mrs Irene CHENG — Hong Kong Housing Authority
HhmE xnt+t —EBFELZEE

Mr Steve GRIFFIN — MTR Corporation Ltd
WwEE E — BEEBRERAF

Mr HO Kwok-kwan, Thomas — The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
My £E — BBAEMES

Mr KWAN King-fai, Alex — The Association of Consulting Engineers of Hong Kong
BSIE 4 — BEBRBIRRMBE

Mr LAU Ming-wai
215 &

Mr MOK Wah-hoi — Independent Commission Against Corruption
RESR K4 — RERE

Ir Kevin POOLE - Airport Authority Hong Kong
Eak LI — BBHSERER

Mr TONG Sek-por, David — Development Bureau
R £ — BRB

Wi E

1. To examine current practices on procurement in relation to project planning, 1. EZERBEHBENIEE S ANRETRBEES-
tendering, contract administration and site supervision, and recommend  FRIZ - ANEEF T EER Wi ERIFMIEER
good practices to improve the quality and cost effectiveness in delivery of =\ LAIRS HER EES R E MRS ©

construction contracts.
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2011 Committee on Subcontracting

20METESHAERAE
(as of 31 December 2011) | (FA20115F12831H)

Chairman Mr WONG Chik-wing, Mike
i EEE KA

Members CIC Members

341 FEHE

Ms CHENG Yeuk-wah, Teresa
BiEEE

Mr CHEUNG Hau-wai
SRER KA

Mr CHOW Luen-kiu

BB Sk

Mr HUI Hon-chung, Stanley
FPER SE

Mr LAM Oi-ki, Peter
MRARE ST

Mr WAN Koon-sun

BT ok

Ir WONG Tin-cheung, Conrad
FHRAE TIZRD

Mr YU Kam-hung
REBLE KA

Mr YU Wai-wai
RER L

Permanent Secretary for Transport and Housing (Housing)
BERkEERFENER (BRE)
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Members Co-opted Members
54} BHER

Mr Anthony CHAN — Hong Kong General Building Contractors Association

PRIBR o4 — BBEREXRAREHE

Mr CHAN Chau-fat — Development Bureau

BRIEE S — BRB

Mr Nelson CHAN — Independent Commission Against Corruption

BRIAX Sei — BREAE

Ir CHAN Ngai-shing, David — The Hong Kong Construction Association

BB £ — BBRENE

Mr CHAN Sam-choi — Hong Kong Confederation of Trade Unions

BR=7 st4 —HBRITamR

Mr CHONG Kin-lit, Paul — The Hong Kong Federation of Electrical and Mechanical Contractors
HEZ Y — REREIRERKS

Mr HUI Man-bock, Bernard — Hong Kong Institute of Architects

AXE £t — HEEEMES

Mr NG Sun-wah, Lawrence — Hong Kong Construction Sub-Contractors Association
L £ — BEREXR S BEREBSE

Mr TANG Ki-cheung — The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors

B £ — BEBNEMBEE

Mr TSE Chun-yuen — Hong Kong Construction Sub-Contractors Association

AR S — BEREXRSBEEBHE

Mr Danny WONG — Contractor’s Authorised Signatory Association
HEEM B4E — AEEREREAHNS

Terms of Reference BiEsEE
1. To operate and develop the Voluntary Subcontractor Registration Scheme 1. &8 M2 EIEa$1E D B rMEIE GEfREIE) -
(VSRS).

2. To raise the professional standard of subcontractors through providing 2. 77 #I/E =2 T2 (5% 53R A2 & H b 12 (B AR 75 -
training courses and other value-added services under the VSRS and A EHMEERRFMIEIIEE  EMmieAHE
coordinating the training organised by other organisations. [SE0ES ¥\ S

3. To examine current arrangements for selection and management of 3. BZBEITHRMEE S BEMLHE Wi HKES
subcontractors and recommend improvements. B

4. To promote use of written subcontracts. 4.

BEEBBAFZNRIFIEE R

5. To promote good practices relating to dispute resolution. 0
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2011 Objections Committee

MFERERHEEEZRE
(as of 31 December 2011) | (R2011512831H)

Convenor Ms CHENG Yeuk-wah, Teresa
B A BE B 2

Members CIC Members

BB EA=24-

Prof KO Jan-ming
2B B

Mr YU Kam-hung
RERHE T4

Terms of Reference RiEgmE
1. To determine objections to levy and surcharge made under section 55 of 1. i1z (RIEEZESIEH) FE55161R H H R XM
CIC Ordinance. MBI R EHELEIR
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Committee Members /
Co-opted Members

ZEESZE/RBEE

2011 Committee on Manpower Training and Development

20MANBAIRBERERE
(as of 31 December 2011) | (FA20115F12831H)

Chairman Ir WONG Wing-hoo, Billy
i TR TIRAD
Members CIC Members

4=} BERE

Ir CHEW Tai-chong
BXA TIZam

Mr CHOW Luen-kiu
RS ST

Mr HO Wai-wah

AJ{EE L4t

Mr WAN Koon-sun

BT A

Mr WONG Chik-wing, Mike
HHEE A

Ir WONG Tin-cheung, Conrad
=R TI2RD

Co-opted Members
BHEE

Ir LAM Tin-sing, Enoch — Development Bureau
MRE Ti2f — BER

Terms of Reference REgsEE

1. To advise on manpower planning and development for construction 1. EEEEANREIRERE BIEEEAL BB
personnel at professional, supervisory and craftsman levels. RT=(EEm REER-

2. To foster an ethical culture. 2. BBRBEFENATHESE ST
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2011 Construction Industry Training Board (established under Section 29 of CIC Ordinance)

20MEERVNHFEZREY (BR<<BEXREEG>>HE291F ML)
(as of 31 December 2011) | (R2011512831H)

Chairman Ir WONG Wing-hoo, Billy
£ =K TIZAD

Members Mr CHOI Wun-hing, Donald
541 BORE S

Mr CHOW Luen-kiu
[EEEE KL

Ir HO Ngai-leung, Albert
a3k R TA2AM

Ir KWAN Po-jen, Helen
BEY T2

Mr LAl Yuk-fai, Stephen
FEIBIE e 4

Ir LAM Tin-sing, Enoch
MKE TI2AM

Mr LI Chi-leung
FTn Rk

Dr LO Kin-ki, Edmond
BEE BT

Mr LOK Kwei-sang, Tandy
R4 4

Ir SYNN Raymond-cheung
VK TR TAZAM
Mr TSE Chun-yuen

R S
Mr TSE Lai-leung, Jimmy
WER k4
Terms of Reference BigaE
1. To provide training courses for the construction industry. 1. [EEE R RRIE

2. To establish and maintain industrial training centres for the construction 2. AEEiEZERIL K MEFFZEFRIBAPLr o
industry.

3. To assist, including by the provision of financial assistance, in the placement 3. BB ek MR E E IR EMIIBRIZEMATE &
of persons who have completed training courses provided for the construction  $ELATRMEBIEIR BhAY 75 V48 T 1880
industry.

4. To assess the standards of skills achieved by any person in any kind of 4. FFA%(E Al ATEH I 22 it 5 ok B 222 4 3 AR RE A ({7
work involving or in connection with the construction industry, to conduct  TEXER TIEA A B EBMEMTKF AR ZE
examinations and tests, to issue or award certificates of attendance or  TEER{TERX KB - B H ek B EHE £ B PE R
competence, and to establish the standards to be achieved in respectofany  fli/KFEFERBE T E B BHKF o
such work.

5. Where itis appointed under the Construction Workers Registration Ordinance 5. ISR Ik (AT AEMEH) (55583%) %
(Cap 583) as the Registrar of Construction Workers under that Ordinance, to ~ ZEAZIEH THIREZET AFMER - BITRIE
perform the functions conferred or imposed on the Registrar by or under that {1 2l (T {a] E 4t 5k SX Bl B 8 & s == (A0 Bk
Ordinance or any other enactment. 88 - AR BZ IR OIS AR E MR SOERII T E T

M EEABRAE -
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Independent auditor’s report
to the Members of Construction Industry Council
(Established under the Construction Industry Council Ordinance,
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region)

We have audited the financial statements of Construction
Industry Council (the “Council”) set out on pages 64 to 91, which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2011, the income
and expenditure account, statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in fund and reserves and cash flow statement
for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

The Council’s responsibility for the financial
statements

The Councilis responsible for the preparation of financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Construction Industry Council
Ordinance and for such internal control as the Council determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 26(2) of the Construction
Industry Council Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from

material misstatement.
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An auditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Council,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of the Council’s affairs as at 31 December 2011 and of
its surplus and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Construction Industry
Council Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

27 April 2012

BAIPRATRRFAEDRERY B RAMESBAREENNE

AHERE o FTIEE VAR FF BURTMIZ BT RO #I B - SRR E B EREE
HRMEBMBHRRFEEAERRAM R - £ EZTAR
B X BN S B B B AR B I TS SRR AR R A B T A F 10 [ R AR
B AERIE S AREHEEMEAER - B B IFH B AR ER R
HMBERMEERER - BN EETEZSMRBETBRRNEE
M REHEEHEFT AR ANFHEM I RARN B Hm T -
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I ER A ZEUBRRORIE (BEYBREEN) BEEM
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MEBRIESRE WEIRR (BEXRSRD) ZRHE -

E R R SE IR
Pk Eaten
BRPIREITE TR
AKFRENE
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W ke

Income and expenditure account for the year ended 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

W EEREBE2011E12A31 B IEEE sk

Levy income

Course fee and related income
Trade testing income
Investment and interest income
Other income

Less:

Staff costs (including retirement benefit
schemes (note 15))

Training expenses

Workshop sundries

General and administrative expenses
Repairs and maintenance expenses
Advertising and publicity expenses
Depreciation

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Allowance for doubtful debts

Less:

Impairment loss on available-for-sale
investments reclassified from equity

Surplus for the year

BERA

Note Fff&E

ARIZUE AR A

TERIFHKA

BERFBUA

HAUEA

Rk

BEER (BHEEKRES

(F&E15) )
%R E A
THFES H
—HATERE B
HISIREBR
Ei? =R=1 {ggﬁﬁ
e

femER Y BEAAHHERER

WIEETE
XEERER

The notes on pages 68 to 91 form part of these financial statements.

68291 H MM FEB AR K 2 — 8D -

2011 2010
$365,540,982  $298,393,051
26,176,410 26,794,304
6,140,852 4,618,324
10,254,646 5,867,468
24,834,664 15,734,028
$432,947,554  $351,407,175
$188,597,684  $169,112,344
47,561,415 38,369,036
15,919,442 14,453,687
38,490,355 21,975,968
7,061,094 5,680,813
8,950,839 3,946,316
10,437,676 6,237,504
336,719 32,466
84,591 143,401
$317,439,815  $259,951,535
$115,507,739 $91,455,640
8,323,892 -
$107,183,847 $91,455,640

Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

PEWHRREE2011F12A31 B IEFE oosksh

Other comprehensive income for the year FEEHEM2EIKE

Available- for- sale investments:

- Net decrease in fair value
- Reclassification adjustment for

impairment loss included in profit or loss

Total comprehensive income

for the year

Note FizE
AHHEREA: 2(c)
- AHEBEZFRIE
- PRERSEERBBEZEND
TR
XEERZEKS

There is no tax effect relating to the above components of the other comprehensive income.

AR Lt E At 2 E s AR R BB (D MR ERR

2 48
=

The notes on pages 68 to 91 form part of these financial statements.

68291 A MM T AR IR 2 — 8D -
= P64 CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2011

2011
$107,183,847

2010
$91,455,640

$(9,501,331)

$(3,680,775)

8,323,892 -
$(1,177,439)  $(3,680,775)
$106,006,408  $87,774,865




Balance sheet at 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BEBEBEXRN2011F12A318 sk

Note Bz 2011 2010
Property, plant and equipment Vs - R RERE 6 $69,466,077 $22,631,316
Held-to-maturity investments BEIHRZIEE 7 30,275,007 30,332,997
Available-for-sale investments AMHHEZRE 8 31,273,546 40,774,877
$131,014,630 $93,739,190
Held-to-maturity investments BRI AZKE 7 $ - $9,987,705
Levy receivables FEM IR 9 26,001,612 18,346,736
i RIEIRS -~ Fafs HihpE
Deposits, prepayments and other XIERE - ENERRAMERK 10 22 856,599 8,966,768
receivables MR8
Cash and deposits at banks RITRE RIFHK 11 589,422,876 512,585,714
Cash on hand FERe 92,000 86,000
$638,373,087  $549,972,923
Accounts payables and accruals FERTIRIE M EATE A 12 $43,913,365 $26,281,814
Amount_g set aside for staff termination B S 4TS A i 250,002
gratuities
Amount due to Construction WOrkers g s e 7 A 32 BIE IR 13 4,031,059 1,743,412
Registration Authority
$47,944,424 $28,275,228
Net current assets mENEE R $590,428,663  $521,697,695
Net assets BESE $721,443,293  $615,436,885
Accumulated fund 2EES $344,945,487  $237,761,640
General reserve LBFEE 386,426,758 386,426,758
Investment revaluation reserve "B EHRHE (9,928,952) (8,751,513)
$721,443,293  $615,436,885

R BMEREN2012F4 A27 AR EX R B IR NEREHE
WA TIIALTRBHER -

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Construction Industry Council on 27 April 2012
and were signed on its behalf by:

Mr LEE Shing-see, GBS, OBE, JP FEMEE  @RFE2E - OBE -
Chairman, Construction Industry A at
Council BEXZRSTE

EACRTIZAD - APt
THEMBEBEKE

Ir WONG Wing-hoo, Billy, JP
Member, Committee on
Administration and Finance

The notes on pages 68 to 91 form part of these financial statements.
E£68E 1 BB A Bk 2 —&p o
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Statement of changes in fund and reserves for the year ended 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

o MEBSBREZ2011F12A318 LLFE Ak
General Investment
Accumulated revaluation
reserve Total
fund (Note (a)) reserve
(Note (b))
ZBEES TimiEE KREEMFEE FEE]
(+£(a) (+£(b))
$146,306,000 $386,426,758 $ (5,070,738) $527,662,020
Surplus for the year REFERHK $91,455,640 - - $91,455,640
Other comprehensive income E 2 ERE - - (3,680,775) (3,680,775)
Total comprehensive income N sz i
for the year AEEHEEENREE $91,455,640 $(3,680,775)  $87,774,865
$237,761,640 $386,426,758  $(8,751,513) $615,436,885
Surplus for the year NEFERHK $107,183,847 - - $107,183,847
Other comprehensive income HE 2R - - (1,177,439) (1,177,439)
Total comprehensive income e 3¢ _
for the year REZHEPEME $107,183,847 $(1,177,439)  $106,006,408
At 31 December 2011 20115128310  $344,945,487 $386,426,758  $(9,928,952) $721,443,293

Notes: #%:

(a) The general reserve has been set up to record the statutory transfer of net assets from Construction Industry Training Authority. The general reserve was created
for employing the reserve in the operations of the Council or by investing the reserve in such manner as the Members think fit. The Members may apply the general
reserve for any other special purpose.

TiBEE RO R B RERIRBAEFERTEE - R EE
& o KEAISHEREMSRIRE - RREMERER -

(b) The investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale securities held at the balance sheet date and is dealt

with in accordance with the accounting policy in note 2(c).

BRESHREEEENAIHREECREZEEABREEARIERANATEAEZE RIRES BRI T2(c) AR °
The notes on pages 68 to 91 form part of these financial statements.
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Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BEREREZ2011F12A31HIEFE pAsKsh

Note Mzt 2011 2010

Surplus for the year REEFRH $107,183,847 $91,455,640
Allowance for doubtful debts RO 84,591 143,401
Depreciation e 10,437,676 6,237,504
Investment and interest income "B RFEWA (10,254,646) (5,867,468)
Loss on disposal of property, M | koE oA -

plant and equipment HEYE - MeS KRB EE 336,719 32,466
Impairment loss on available-for-sale WESEFHER 8.393 892 i

investments reclassified from equity AL ERER R EEE i
Operating cash inflow before FiEES£EETZ $116,112,079  $02,001,543

changes in working capital

EERSaRE
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Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (continued)
BEREREE2011F12A31HIEFE B8 (@)

Increase in levy receivables

(Increase)/decrease in deposits,
prepayments and other receivables

Increase in accounts payables and
accruals

Decrease in amounts set aside for staff
termination gratuities

Increase in amount due to Construction
Workers Registration Authority

Net cash generated from
operating activities

Increase in bank deposits with maturity
over three months

Interest received

Dividend received from
available-for-sale investments

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from derecognition of
held-to-maturity investments

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing
activities
Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents
at end of the year

Cash and deposits at banks
Cash on hand

Less: Bank deposits with maturity over
three months

JiLeE- Gl
we  BNERK
HfEUiRE (i) / md

& 1~ R TR N e T B S A
BB 1 imBN & ERR

B T AGMRER BRI
RABEEFHZHEPH

IEF5ER B =E A B 2 sR1T 1K
WCER A8
WER AT ERE 2 IR

BAME - #ERRE
BEHERR ER A 2R E
PSR

HEWE - Has RRBASFR

RARKREBZRE PR
ReRERRSEEFHE
FOZRERERRLEAR

FRZBETRERREER

RITEE MER
FERE

B : FBESME A B 2 IR TR

The notes on pages 68 to 91 form part of these financial statements.

F68E91 AMM B AMEIREK 2 — 8D -

Note Hf&E

11

2011 2010
(7,739,467) (3,357,659)
(8,535,478) 696,328
17,631,551 4,493,606

(250,002) (250,583)
2,287,647 696,304
$119,506,330  $94,279,539
$(101) $(19,889)
8,132,546 3,256,168
1,421,972 982,573

(62,218,186)

(10,160,757)

10,000,000 -
500 -
$(42,663,269) $(5,941,905)
$76,843,061 $ 88,337,634
512,611,714 424,274,080
$589,454,775  $512,611,714
$ 589,422,876 $ 512,585,714
92,000 86,000

$589,514,876
(60,101)

$512,671,714
(60,000)

$589,454,775

$512,611,714
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1. General

The Construction Industry Council (the “Council’) was established
as a statutory body on 1 February 2007 in Hong Kong under the
The

Council is a non-profit making organisation and acts as an industry

Construction Industry Council Ordinance (“the Ordinance”).
co-ordinating body. lts principal functions are to forge consensus
on long-term strategic issues, convey the industry’s needs and
aspirations to the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
Government (the “Government”), as well as provide a communication
channel for the Government to solicit advice on all construction-
related matters. In order to propagate improvements across the
entire industry, the Council is empowered to formulate codes of
conduct, administer registration and rating schemes, steer forward
research and manpower development, provide and co-ordinate
training courses, facilitate adoption of construction standards,
promote good practices and compile performance indicators and

make recommendations with respect to the rate of the levy.

The address of the registered office of the Council is located at 15/F,

Allied Kajima Building, 138 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
2. Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable individual
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Ordinance. A summary
of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Council is set

out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the Council.
However, none of these developments are relevant to the Council’s

operation.

The Council has not applied any new standard or interpretation that

is not yet effective for the current accounting period (note 21).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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(b) Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial

statements is the historical cost basis except that the financial

instruments classified as available-for-sale financial assets are

stated at their fair values as explained in the accounting policy set

out in note 2(c).

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which

is also the functional currency of the Council.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the Council to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ

from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if

the revision affects both current and future periods.

(b) BB B x B
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(c) Investments in debt and equity
securities

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated at
fair value, which is their transaction price unless fair value can
be more reliably estimated using valuation techniques whose
variables include only data from observable markets. Costincludes
attributable transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise
below. These investments are subsequently accounted for as

follows, depending on their classification:

Dated debt securities that the Council has the positive ability and
intention to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity
securities. Held-to-maturity securities are stated at amortised cost

less impairment losses (see note 2(g)).

Other investments in securities being those held for non-trading
purpose, are classified as available-for-sale securities. Atthe end of
each reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant
gain or loss being recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value reserve, except
foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of monetary items such as debt securities which
are recognised directly in profit or loss. Dividend income from
these investments is recognised in profit or loss in accordance
with the policy set out in note 2(I)(iv) and, where these investments
are interest-bearing, interest calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the policy
set outin note 2(I)(v). When these investments are derecognised or
impaired (see note 2(g)), the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified

from equity to profit or loss.

Investments are recognised / derecognised on the date the Council

commits to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (continued)

B A% 3R 3R MY 5 wommsr) )

(c) REREBZHEFRE

RNPEEIBER
%fﬁﬁ‘f) B%?EQ?FTE@}BL% a%?ﬁ@‘[ﬁm SRR E B
BEDET AR A SEMERGHE R TR RITATRIN RAAE
R RBR DA - B EERATEDE ARIAT

FeATImAENTREZIBAZEHES HBEABERIHA
Z%%‘% T B HAB 2 E 2 A S Ak A H0BR R E B 1 T (LB
FE2(e)) °

Hib B AR ERZGABNESKE D BRAIREEZES &
B-HERERE  SEFGELFEE KRTHNERER

BaEMESSEERERBEEN AR S ATERNINER SN A
BREBEGZONEME2EKRE AR RN A FEERERAAE
AR RE o 5 LR B I BUA - SIRMEE2(1)(iv) FrFIBER R

B EER THESLERERE HERBRNEAFTENF
B @RME2()(VFFIBE RER LR - EELREER
HHERIORER (RMfFE2e) HREZENBEEHN IR

RAEEER -



(d) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses (note 2(e)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and equipment
includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the initial estimate,
where relevant, of the costs of dismanting and removing the items
and restoring the site on which they are located, and an appropriate

proportion of production overheads.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement

or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any,
using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as

follows:

— Building and premises 10 - 25 years
— Motor vehicles 5 years
— Computer equipment 3-5years
— Renovation and building facilities 5 years
— Furniture and fixtures 10 years

- Facilities, tools, machinery and workshop equipment 5 years
— Other equipment 10 years
Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are

reviewed annually.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (continued)
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(e) Impairment of assets
(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and

(e) EERE
(i) BExkiEmEESEEAEMEWIRERE

other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and other receivables
that are stated at cost or amortised cost or are classified as
available-for-sale securities are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the Council about

one or more of the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or

other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an

investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined
and recognised as follows:

- For other receivables and other financial assets carried
at amortised cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where these financial assets share similar
risk characteristics, such as similar past due status, and have
not been individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss experience for assets

with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective group.
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If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative loss that has
been recognised in the fair value reserve is reclassified to profit
or loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised
in profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition cost
(net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that asset previously

recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect of
available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of

such assets is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in
respect of levy receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Council is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against levy
receivables directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are recognised in

profit or loss.
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(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the property, plant and equipment may be impaired or, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may

have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.

— Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

Animpairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair

value less costs to sell, or value in use, if determinable.
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- Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An

impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

() Receivables
Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter
stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(g).

(g) Payables
Payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(h) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three

months of maturity at acquisition.

(i) Employee benefits
Salaries, gratuities, paid annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services

are rendered by employees.
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() Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Council has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of

outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(k) Operating leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Council determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a
series of payments. Such a determination is made based on an
evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

Assets that are held by the Council under leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Council are classified as operating leases.

Where the Council has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to profit
or loss in equal installments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

= P76 CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2011

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (continued)

B % 3R 3R MY 5 (wommsr) )

() BEREARR

Q%QI&%%%@ ERMBBUERSIEEEE MEAH
EFREBRBENRINRIAE B ZEEARA AEL — &
ﬂ%?ﬁ%ﬁﬁv CEHFEMBEREENRERRBEG - BX
EORFREBRARE BRETZEENXHEURESR
B

At BRIV - AR EL T
SEMFEEE ZRTSUNRBERE  BRIFHEBEN MR
AIREIE RN TFEMA - BEBURN —RA B RARLEMF
EEJZT\?‘EFW_EE’\JTQEEE MEBUHARBERE  FRIFL
BN E SN R R RENE R DR F EL AR o

(k) EEHE

FReET ALHBREN —BRhzEERNEE—£H
RAZENTEMR THERFE AN ZEEEMNEN
At —ARZEIZMAEXRN LT BN EHA— 7D
ERT -AHEERERYZALHELERTN % LT
EZRIZZHRENEERN AR A KER -

URBERAZSEEBEE AR BAREEH 2AELRX
REREMNBEE SENB/ZENE-

FHSAALEHETHAEENER®E MZEE TN

MR SREAEHANSHENEREO T A RERERH
BRER BIERBER2IIRAMEEEENDOAKRS
R EXWNEEEETSUNBEREERRER  EANHNEF
ME 2z A &R - miFEEMHESNHENS
AR BB R IR & -



(1) Recognition of income
Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Council and the income and costs, if applicable,
can be measured reliably, income is recognised in profit or loss
as follows:

(i) Levy income is accounted for on an accrual basis and is
recognised upon the assessment of the value of construction
operations by the Council.

(i) Course fee and related income and trade testing income are
recognised over the year of instruction or testing.

(i) Registration service fee income is recognised when the
services are rendered.

(iv) Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
Council’s right to receive payment is established.

(v) Interestincome is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

(m) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the balance sheet initially
when there is reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Council will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Council for expenses incurred
are recognised as revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis
in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Council for the cost of an asset are deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the
asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.
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AFERER
(iii) FE AR 7S B AR 2 A 1R R B B AR IS B e 37 o

(ii

=

(iv) B TS B B A R FE S7 o & YRI5 5K 2 B 7 P R

(v) MBWARARERERERMEEMER -

(m) B FFH2 &
EAAEIEEERIBNEREZE R AEWHB RGN
BNBERNTeRNEEABR LR HEXFEIMEER
TRER SUREHEERRNEXASYR —FHMNEZR -
BRAEKZ REENAEAMBERSNET SREE
IREENR YEREEENASHHRE  SRFMANTER
T oRiExE EHER -
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(n) Related parties

(1) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related

to the Council if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Council;

(ii) has significant influence over the Council; or

(i) is @ member of the key management personnel of the
Council.

(2)An entity is related to the Council if any of the following
conditions applies:

() The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (1).

(i) Apersonidentifiedin (1)(i) has significantinfluence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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3. Levy income 3. BRUWA
2011 2010
Private sector FLETHE $162,815,812  $154,260,678
Public sector NETHE 152,043,990 128,675,653
Others (note) HaTHE (F5) 50,314,872 15,270,695
Penalty on overdue levy BB R 2 TR 366,308 186,025
$365,540,982  $298,393,051

I EMTREERAREORKSER FREK SERHK-
MAESR MEEEE BREGEAKLAEERIEEEN
O

Note: Othersinclude levyincome on construction operations relating
to the port and airport development, Mass Transit Railway,
Express Rail Link, South Island Line, Penny’s Bay Railway,
Kwun Tong Line Extension and West Island Line.

B CREEZGBR) F32(8 RERSRAMBEEBET
I 720001 A10B S ABIERES - MEEER1,000,0007T
2 EETRERBIRER B3 X 50.4%-1B7E2000F1810H7T
EERIZERNREETE AHRERGE (810.25%) # &5

In accordance with the provisions of section 32 of the Ordinance,
a levy was imposed at the rate of 0.4%, which was applied to
construction operations, the tender for which was submitted on or
after 10 January 2000 on the value of all construction operations
exceeding $1,000,000 undertaken in Hong Kong. Construction
projects the tender for which was submitted before 10 January 2000

was subject to the old levy rate of 0.25%.

4. Investment and interest income 4. BERFBKA

2011 2010

Interest on debt securities BERBH2HE $1,514,250 $1,832,213
Interest on bank deposits RITERZF B 7,286,054 2,792,468
Other interest income E MR B HA 12 102
Dividend from available-for-sale investments AHEERE RS 1,454,330 1,242,685
$10,254,646 $5,867,468
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N O

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (continued)

B % 3R 3R MY 5 (wommsr) )

5. Other income 5. Hfttlk A
2011 2010
Service fee income from Construction REFEEET AFMELERRS

Workers Registration Authority (note 20) & AU A (F13E20) $10,500,909 $11,902,802
Transfer of net assets from EYERNEEERELTE 2Rl ) 686.038

PCICB Registration Limited (note (a)) BRAREEFE (K@) ’
Government grant BTN 725,000 -
Reimbursement of trainees’ allowances B t=] ==t 9,507,400 771,100
Other miscellaneous income HALFEIRIA 4,101,355 2,374,088
$24,834,664 $15,734,028

(a) BREGIFESEREZRACHMETRL F
EERE
B2008F2A1AR BREREEENEZEGHMBERAR
(BERERE) TENFTEEZEFRFME D B EEMfMbE
(DEEEMmEE) B TETEERBNAR R IRK
ERe RAXESEHAMIE . Mo e mamslEmITER
BR% - BlfREELNEEEBASGHRE - BHES B EEME
ERIEAMEEMARRMIEALIE S H2010F18408
B ENRREASERSBEEMAIENEER 1L B
RNERSOHE HEEFECRERNEREMMAMER
AERERME BREZS -

(a) Transfer of net assets from PCICB

Registration Limited

PCICB Registration Limited (the “Company”) has principally
engaged in operating the Voluntary Subcontractor Registration
Scheme (the “Scheme”) for construction industry and performed
the role of Scheme Owner since 1 February 2008. The Company
was set up to own the Scheme while the administration services
for the Scheme was provided by the Council as the Scheme
Operator. To facilitate more effective management and future
enhancement of the Scheme, the Council took over the
ownership of the Scheme from the Company with effect from 4
January 2010. Thereafter, the Company was dissolved and its
net assets were transferred to the Council in accordance with the

Company’s memorandum and articles of association.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, net assets 201012 A3MALEFERN BREERENEEFERT

transferred to the Council were as follows:

Cash and deposits at bank RTINS RIFR $1,479,400
Accounts payable and accruals FERIIRIE R FERT B R (793,362)
Net assets transferred g BEFE $686,038
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6. Property, plant and equipment 6. M BABREE
Facilities,
. . tools,
Building and ' Renoyat!on Furniture machinery
premises Construction Motor Computer and building and d Other
i hicl i t facilities fixtures an i t Total
Eﬁ% In progress venicles eqUIpr?en - n WOI'kShOp eqUIpr‘?en i@%ﬁ
Rigs FRIRE mE BiERE RERETF R equipment  EMERE MO
Hie BEEEE e
TH-
Rk K
THHRE
Cost B
At;a’fg“ary F?g?g $5 $- $264806 $6439504 $14479639 $423519 $6962,103 $1,835948 $30,405614
Additions B - ; . 894048 3206869 57,308 5250016 743516 10,160,757
Disposals e - - - - (3,110) - (16063)  (50906) (70,079
Atg;1%e°ember m?g}%a $5 $- $264806 $7,333642 $17,683398 $480.827 $12205056 $2,528,558 $ 40,496,292
At ;(fﬂ”“ary EA?%E $5 $- $264,806 $7,333642 $17,683398 $480,827 $12205056 $2,528,558 $ 40,496,292
Additions B . 20482000 193300 1648884 24267696 1095004 10619324 1911888 62,218,186
Govermnment grant  BUR 5K - - - - (4,608,530) - - - (4,608,530)
Disposals e - - - - (568564) - (26070) (111,814)  (706,448)
Atg;ﬁecember m?ggia $5 $22482000 $458,106 $8982526 $36,774000 $1575921 $22798310 $4,328632 $97,399,500
Acg‘;’;:':;%n ZHFE $- $- $180047 $3249,117 $5463277  $69,101 $2204798  $407,845 $ 11,665,085
At ;(ffg“ary %?()%1105 - 52060 1231782 2868442 45100 1800492 229719 6,237,504
Ch;ergf forthe ok e priem - . - - (3,110) - (10575 (23928)  (37,613)
Written backon ~ HE&E%
Hispoeals oo $- $- $233907 $4480899 $8328600 $114210 $4,003715 $613636 $ 17,864,976
At 31 December 20104
2010 128318
At ; gﬂnuaw EA?%E $- $- $233907 $4,480899 $8328609 $114210 $4093715 $613636 $17,864,976
Ch?;gf forthe e priog - - 40558 1255214 5073308 122827 3566794 378975 10,437,676
Wr(lj’rltsesol;::;( on mégz - - - (300,201) - (15147)  (53881) (369,229)
Atg;ﬁecember F?ggi q 8- $- $274465 $5736,113 $13101,716 $237,037 $7,645362 $938730 $27,033423

Net book value: 1R EE:

At31 December %2011 $5 $22482000 $183641 $3246413 $23672284 $1,338,884 $15,152948 $3,389,002 $69,466,077

2011 128318
At gg 1%e°embe' w?g]qoi 5 85 $-  $30899 $2,852743 $9354780 $366,617 $8111,341 $1,914922 $22631,316
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7. Held-to-maturity investments

Notes to the financial statements
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (continued)

Bt 7% 3R 3R M B oz ()

7. SEIMAZ®/E

2011 2010
Unlisted debt instruments ELMEBEE $ 30,275,007  $ 40,320,702
Analysed as: DT R
— Non-current assets - FERBEE $ 30,275,007  $ 30,332,997
— Current assets - REBEE - 9,987,705
$30,275,007 $40,320,702
The held-to-maturity investments are neither past due nor BEIHB 2 KRE W MmEARIELRE -
impaired.
8. Available-for-sale investments 8. AItHERS
2011 2010
Equity securities listed on The Stock = T A B A L
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited EE;EE%;%E?%Q?JZW Z $ 31,273,546 $ 40,774,877
(at market value) = g
Fair value of individually impaired equity EREL R ERNEREZELSATF $ 24.753.509 i

securities BE

As at 31 December 2011, the Council’s available-for-sale equity
securities were individually determined to be impaired on the
basis of a material decline in their fair value below cost which
indicated that the cost of the Council’s investment in them may
not be recovered. Impairment losses on these investments were
recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out
in note 2(e)(i).
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9. Levy receivables 9. FE &R
2011 2010
Levy receivables FEM R $28,820,619  $ 21,145,260
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts W RIRZEE (2,819,007) (2,798,524)
$26,001,612  $ 18,346,736

All levy receivables are expected to be recovered within one year.

The average credit period on levy receivables granted to the
contractors is 28 days after the contractor receives the notice
of assessment. Further details on the Council’s credit policy are
set out in note 18(a).

No penalty is imposed on the contractor for the specified period
of 28 days. Thereafter, penalty is imposed at 5% of the unpaid
amount. If the amount of the levy or surcharge, including any
penalty imposed remains unpaid within three months after the
expiry of the specified period, a further penalty of 5% of the
unpaid amount will be imposed on the outstanding balance. The
Council would provide fully for all long outstanding receivables,
having considered, inter alia, the likelihood of recoverability
based on historical experience.

Included in the Council’s levy receivables balance are debtors
with a carrying amount of $492,789 (2010: $1,383,003) which
are past due at the reporting date for which the Council had
not provided for any doubtful debts as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still
considered recoverable. The Council did not hold any collateral
over these balances. The average age of these receivables is
76 days (2010: 62 days).

PrA e TR — Rk E -

AEGE R P AL AU R R (5 B A B 2 28 RIS Bk
FRZSEARENE-FHE SHRHE18(a) -

IR AR 28 R HIE L % 5150 BB R A A B | R
BN RENS%H R - MBARKINE - BEAE TR
S EATEERM2s R BEEREN =EARR R
AEERIABBEINAN SR - B RS KB 5% °
ZECORBEBAERRBIERER M RERAEXRIE
WORTA 1 2 B -

TRZEREBEFNESRA  HRIIREES492,789 (2010
#:$1,383,003) WEFKNBEABREBBREEHR -
ZEERRWIREZ EREZTESERNEE  BEEHEH
FIEAIAKE - MABAZERIRELBEH ZELER
ZERBGRIBEBRB AT AERG it SRUBGKIBNFE
HIREEA76K (2010F :62K) °
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(a) Impairment of levy receivables

Impairment losses in levy receivables are recorded using an
allowance account unless the Council is satisfied that recovery
of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is

written off against levy receivables directly (see note 2(g)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the
year is as follows:

At 1 January ®1A18
Impairment loss recognised HRNREEE
Uncollectible amounts written off EERicE N A E ek
At 31 December M®12A31H

At31 December 2011, the Council’s levy receivables of $2,819,007
(2010: $2,798,524) were determined to be impaired.

In determining the recoverability of levy receivables, the Council
collectively considered any change in the credit quality of the
levy receivables from the date credit was initially granted up to
the reporting date. The concentration of credit risk is limited due
to the contractor base being large and unrelated.

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired levy receivables with an aggregate balance of
$1,130,011 (2010: $1,124,991) which have either been placed
under liquidation or in severe financial difficulties. The Council
did not hold any collateral over these balances.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (continued)

B % 3R 3R MY 5 (wommsr) )

(a) ER @2 st

EWER 2 BEBESNERIRPLS  RIFRSRER
e REEMTEMN MeEZEBRIEBHREHRERS
1B (RME2(e) -

FREARREFHEEHMT -

2011 2010
$ 2,798,524 $ 2,671,554
84,591 143,401
(64,108) (16,431)
$ 2,819,007 $ 2,798,524

R2011F12A318 ' &g M IR $2,819,007
(20104F: $2,798,524)E B EELRIE -

ZEEHERWEBEETRERN SEBZEAKNGE TE
EERERHIAHRRETNERERAEER - A
ZRENBEEERALLNERE WEENERRRER -

ERIREERNETEAS1,130,011 (20104 - $1,124,991) HyfE
WHR B TERE AR EAE R ERENRA
HOARBZEERR - FE Y ERZSRELERTEEIM
IR



(b) Levy receivables that are not impaired (b) F1EL B Y=
The ageing analysis of levy receivables that are neither REBIXERRBARBENERERIRRSTAT

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as

follows:
2011 2010
Current BNHA $ 25,508,823 $ 16,963,733
Less than one month past due AELREA $ 87,579 $ 1,022,262
One to three months past due BEA1E3@EA 133,871 69,572
Over three months past due B HARRA3ME A 271,339 291,169
$ 492,789 $ 1,383,003
$ 26,001,612 $ 18,346,736
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate ABEBESORER EUIRIE - 5 RS SEN R IT RERC 8
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent B EGER o
history of default.

10. Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 10. #IR#E& R+ B AR Kt B RIR

2011 2010
Deposits and prepayments BHEZe RENER $ 3,130,387 $ 3,930,059
Other receivables HAtb fEUIRIA
— Interest receivables - IR B, 2,091,264 1,377,799
- Dividend receivables - RS 292,470 260,112
— Others - Hith 17,342,478 3,398,798
$ 22,856,599 $ 8,966,768
The amount of the Council’s deposits expected to be recovered TEHENBA—FRFRNEERETER$1,906,913 (2010
after more than one year is $1,906,913 (2010: $2,023,780). All F:$2,023,780) c FrE Efhig® - TERN B A - DA R Efth FEUIR
of the other deposits, prepayments and other receivables are B BN —FRNEZRIEBR AT HIER -

expected to be recovered or recognised as expenditure within
one year.
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11. Cash and deposits at banks
Cash and deposits at banks comprise cash and demanded
deposits held by the Council. Cash and deposits at bank carry
interest at market rates which range from 0.74% to 2.25%
(2010: from 0.67% to 1.12%) per annum.

Notes to the financial statements
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (continued)

Bt 7% 3R 3R M B oz ()

M. BTREREFR
FEMNRTRERTFAREBRERERENFER - BHET
ReERFERAURBOTSFNEEHO.74%E2.25%
(20105F50.67% & 1.12%)°

2011 2010
Deposits with banks RITFR
— with maturity over three months - B 3ME A $ 60,101 $ 60,000
— with maturity less than three months - &8 DR 3ME A 555,107,375 510,475,484
Cash at bank IRITIRE 34,255,400 2,050,230
$ 589,422,876 $512,585,714

12. Accounts payables and accruals
All of the accounts payables and accruals are expected to be
settled within one year or are repayable on demand.

13. Amount due to Construction Workers
Registration Authority
The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

12. EfTIRREE R

FRERMNIER R EFERBEBRHR —FREELBNE

BE-

13. B @ERTIAZMERRRE

PSR T AR 2 8 W/ABIRER

14. Auditor’s remuneration 14. TR &
2011 2010
Audit fee and disbursements included in general B3EE—RITINE BARZEE B
and administrative expenses are as follows: REPHBEIAT:
— current year provision - NEERHE $ 185,000 $ 185,000
— over-provision in prior period - ATHABE B (1,110) (480)

15. Retirement benefit schemes
Contributions to the retirement benefit schemes made by the

Council of $14,332,042 (2010: $13,367,743) are included in
staff costs.
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16. Operating lease charges EEHRRE

2011 2010
Operating lease charges BEHERE
— minimum lease payment - REBEERKE $ 3,254,852 $-
17. Taxation 17. R\

Pursuant to section 28 of the Ordinance, no provision for
taxation has been made in the financial statements as the
Council is exempted from taxation under the Inland Revenue

Ordinance.

18. Financial risk management and fair values
Exposure to credit, liquidity and interest rate risks arises in
the normal course of the Council’s operation. The Council is
also exposed to equity price risk arising from its investments
in equity securities. The Council’s exposure to these risks and
the financial risk management policies and practices used by
the Council to manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Council reviewed the recoverable amount of the outstanding
balances at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the Council considered that the Council’s credit
risk is significantly reduced. Further quantitative disclosures in
respect of the Council’s exposure to credit risk arising from levy
receivables are set out in note 9.

The credit risk on the Council’s cash and bank deposits is limited
because the counterparties are major financial institutions.

(b) Liquidity risk
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the
Council, which has built an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Council’s short, medium
and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements.
The Council managed liquidity risk by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows.

BREBE(REXZSHRO) 28K ANB R ABBIKF
1) B R BTR - BURATR RRAER BB -

18. MERBREERATFRE

ZYBREEAEY SHREAREE RBHELRFEX

FREEEL B2 EAIEEREBTHFRES| EMNE
=mEBERER FeAXRRBEANESHTANTBEER
EEBREST BT

(a) IEEMmEE
FERE —REHERE 2R EKIRRO AT IRER
g - ﬁEﬁ%‘JT—MﬁZ@ RIBETREEREBE LA &Y

SAEENEERREABRL - REG AT BREHRE K
E’JZT R E—EEFEREER  EHIRKFE -

HRETARESREE SENRTREMEFREER

REBEEIR -

(b) BV E £ mME
RBEcRREENRKRETE
ERENRBECREREIERE

REE MESDEIL—
S MEEREENEH

TR RARERRDECERER - BB EREER
BRAEHNERBRSRE EERDESNHER
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(c) Interest rate risk

The Council was exposed to cash flow interest rate risk through
the impact of rate changes on interests bearing financial assets.
Interests bearing financial assets are mainly cash and deposits
at banks which are all short term in nature. Therefore, any future
variations in interest rates will not have a significant impact on the
results of the Council.

(d) Equity price risk

The Councilis exposed to equity price changes arising from equity
investments classified as available-for-sale equity securities (see
note 8). All of these investments are listed.

Listed investment held in the available - for - sale portfolio have
been chosen based on their long term growth potential and are
monitored regularly for performance against expectations.

At 31 December 2011, it is estimated that an increase/(decrease)
of 1% (2010: 1%) in the relevant stock market index (for listed
investments), with all other variables held constant, would have
increased/decreased the Council’s reserve by $312,735 (2010:
$407,749).

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change
in the Council’s reserve that would arise assuming that the
changes in the stock market index had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Council which expose the
Council to equity price risk at the end of the reporting period.
It is also assumed that the fair values of the Council’s equity
investments would change in accordance with the historical
correlation with the relevant stock market index, that none of the
Council’s available-for-sale investments would be considered
impaired as a result of the decrease in the relevant stock market
index, and that all other variables remain constant. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2010.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (continued)
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(e) Fair values

i. Financial instruments carried at fair value

The fair value of each financial instrument categorised in its
entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant
to that fair value measurement. The levels are defined as

follows:

- Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial
instruments

— Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active
markets for similar financial instruments, or using valuation
techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data

- Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using valuation
techniques in which any significant input is not based on
observable market data

The fair values of the Council’s financial instruments (other
than available-for-sale investments) approximate their carrying
amount. The Council’s available-for-sale investments are
categorised as level 1 financial instruments. The fair value of
the Council’s available-for-sale investments was $31,273,546
as at 31 December 2011 (2010: $40,774,877) which was based
on quoted market price in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(see note 8).

During the year there were no transfers among instruments in
level 1 and level 2.

ii. Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Council’s financial assets carried at
amortised cost are not materially different from their fair values
as at 31 December 2011 and 2010. The carrying amounts at
amortised cost of the Council’s held-to-maturity investments was
$30,275,007 as at 31 December 2011 (2010: $40,320,702).

() 2 FRE

i EMIAZAFEE

BESRMIANAFEEOUNERKE D YUBEAF
BEMARAREEABRERS AN - BRAGAIRELT

- B (ZEEAR ) AETE2HRAESR TARNEET SN
EHE CREHE) MEEAFEE

- B2 B R TARNERMSH ETE KA
EABBEOEZEXRZRERA R MSBEAEERMM
BEAFEE

- B3 (RERR): MEMEARNBIEGFEERAR TS
BEMHERTMEEAFEE

ZENERITE (IHEEZHRERIN HAFEBEHER
FIEEEEL ZENAIHLERE S9AF 1R T
AB-HZE201MF12A318 ZERAHEHEREN A TEE
£%$31,273,546 (2010 B$40,774,877)  BEAESIKEE
REABEXSER AR TE (REMES)-

FEANTEF1ALF2RCRIAZENER -

i. JEARFEEIRZ SR TANFEE

2010 20114128318 - AR ATIRNZ S S
BEERAEE HEFAATFTEBLEERER - R2011
F12A318 ZERFEIHERENEHENARDER
$30,275,007 (2010%4F: $40,320,702)°
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Notes to the financial statements
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (continued)

Bt 7% 3R 3R M B oz ()

19. Commitments 19. &if

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 (a)2011F12531HRKETRIEFRFLIERSE
December 2011 not provided for in the EREWT:
financial statements were as follows:

2011 2010
Contracted for RETE:S] $ 216,158,477 $ 623,590
Authorised but not contracted for B EERETL 13,600,000
$ 216,158,477 $ 14,223,590
Capital commitments relate to the acquisition or development of BREREABABANBEME - HERRE-

property, plant and equipment.

(b) At 31 December 2011, the total future minimum (b) B#2011F12H31H ' F TR FAI & E#H R H #

leasepayments undernon-cancellable operating AR REEEARTFHUT:
leases are payable as follows:

2011 2010
Within one year R1ER $ 3,026,704 $-
After one year but within five years 1F&{B5F A 3,451,618 -
$ 6,478,322 $-
The Council is the lessee in respect of a property held under ZEE HEEHEYENABA-BRHEN I RE=
operating lease. The lease runs for an initial period of three FAAGBREER AT AEEEH REHETRIE
years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms are MFEENXEHSE -

renegotiated. The lease does not include contingent rentals.
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20. Related party transactions 20. REALES
Apart from the outstanding balances with related parties as BREEMF1IBERBENAEA T 2ERSEIN ZEEFER
disclosed in note 13, during the year, the Council entered into the BAZRAE A THIT IR S -

following transactions with a related party.

2011 2010
Construction Workers Registration Authority BEFTAZMEERR
— Registration service fee income - AR B R WA $9,660,909  $ 11,062,802
— Levy collection service fee income - BERARTE B R WA 840,000 840,000
Funding support to Hong Kong Green Building ~ ¥ &84 EEEZSHFR AR
Coungil Limited KEXF 7,780,921 5,256,435

21. Possible impact of amendments, new 21. EFFEREE2011F12A3MHIEFERRE

standards and interpretations issued but WEVERT - FIDERRR BN E

not yet effective for the year ended 31

December 2011

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the BEEAUBMRERER EESHMAGEHME T
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards AlCHTIEEAIRRE BEERTREREE2011F12A
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended STHIEFEAR MABERMERREM -

31 December 2011 and which have not been adopted in these

financial statements.

The Council is in the process of making an assessment of what ZEH NG EETAEEERVBENTE -BE
the impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period BRIRIL #wmEHRAEHIER TR RSNEFEKR
of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption RS - B ERZE -

of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Council’s
results of operations and financial position.
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Number of Higher Paid Staff
The actual remuneration of staff members exceeding $1,000,000
in 2010 and 2011 is shown below

$1,000,000 to $1,800,000
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EFRFHr8i18$1,000,000008E AW T:

2011 2010

Number of Individuals Number of Individuals
BB AR BB AR

11 9
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